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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accoempanying financial statements of Meridian Medical Research &
Hospital Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Ruies made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Vher information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

=« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

9)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2022 and hence reporting
under Section 197 of the Act is not applicable,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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iil.

V.

The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 37(iii) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 37(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

T b W

Monisha Parikh

Place:- Bengaluru Partner
Date :- May 20, 2022 (Membership No. 47840)
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022 UDIN:- 22047840AJLHHE1777
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Meridian Medical
Research & Hospital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W100018)

T o0 b sl

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No.47840)
UDIN : 22047840AJLHHE1777
Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 20, 2022
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(0

(0

(1

(

(0

(i)

(ii)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

C))

(b)

(A)

(B)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital
work in progress and right of use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress and right of use assets to cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified
by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

Based on our examination of the registered conveyance deed provided to us,
we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of land that has been taken on lease and disclosed as right of use
assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of
the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right
of Use Assets and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder, and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly statements comprising
(stock statements) filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters.
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(i)

(iii)

(iii)

(i)

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given
below:

Particulars Loans
{(Amount in Rs Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:

| Others Rs. 300
Balance Outstanding as at the
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases *: | |
Others | Nil |

The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular as per stipulation.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature
of loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year nor has any
unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services
rendered. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
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(vii)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(x)

(x)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

)

(@

(b)

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of
Customs, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2022.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial
institution or other lender.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by
the Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, or joint ventures, or associate companies.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xi) (@)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)
(b)(c)

(xvi) (d)

(xviii)

(xix)

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143
of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clauses (xiv)(a) and
(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions) does not have any CIC (Core
Investment Company) as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
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a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of
the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W100018)

Monisha Parikh

Partner

(Membership No.47840)
UDIN : 22047840AILHHE1777

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 20, 2022
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Balance sheet

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Noate No As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 8,535.83 8,872.45
Capital work-in-progress 4 243.65 25.12
Right of use assets 5 548.80 690.74
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6(a) 199.29 149.01
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 . 181.41
Other non-current assets 7(a) 1,230.52 910.36
Total non-current assets 10,758.09 10,829.09
Current assets
Inventories 8 309.50 211.16
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 1,835.91 1,979.50
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 294.32 592.96
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 5243 27.78
(iv) Other financial assets 6(b) 130.77 13238
Other current assets 7(b) 173.20 144.72
Total current assets 2,796.13 3,088.50
TOTAL ASSETS 13,554.22 13.917.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3] 2,927.88 2,927.88
Other cquity 12 5,647.99 3,503.12
Total equity 8,575.87 6,431.00
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financia! liabilities
(i) Bortowings 13(a) 86.76 2,161.90
(ii) Lease liabililies 14(a) 397.05 573.96
Provisions 15(a) 85.80 2592
Deferred tax liability (net) 29 123.48 -
Other non current liabilitics 18(a) 533 -
Total non-current liabilitics 698.42 2,761.78
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13(b) 32.94 635.24
(ii) Lease liabilities 14(b) 176.91 162.23
(iii) Trade payables 16
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small cnterprises 205.58 136.65
Tota! outstending ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small cnlerprises 2,886.03 2,671.68
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 82.79 494.13
Pravisions 15(b) 123.60 109.30
Other current liabilities 18(b) 772.08 515.58
Total current liabilities 4,279.93 4,724.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13.554.22 13,917.59
Sigmificant accounting policics 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date aftached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

1. A
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of profit and loss

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 19 23,457.23 17,119.21
Other income 20 109.22 119.60
Total income (A) 23,566.45 17,238.81
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 6,405.02 5,327.46
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 21 (98.34) 40.75
Employee benefits expense 22 3,032.98 2,634.38
Professional fees to doctors 5,626.79 4,284.21
Other expenses 23 4,135.50 3,398.41
Expenses before finance cost, depreciation and amertisation (B) 19,101.95 15,685.21
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (A-B) 4,464.50 1,553.60
Finance costs (C) 24 228.97 312.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense (D) 25 1,136.00 1,074.51
Total expenses (E) = (B+C+D) 20,466.92 17,072.07
Profit before tax (F) =(A-E) 3.099.53 166.74
Tax expenses 29
Current Tax 613.05 27.25
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement (48.76) (27.25)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 363.87 46.57
Total tax expense (G) 928.16 46.57
Net Profit for the year H=(F-G) 2,171.37 120.17
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (36.72) (1.95)
Income tax effect 10.22 0.54
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (I) (26.50) (1.41)
Total comprehensive income for the year J=(H+1) 2.144.87 118.76
Earnings per share 31 7.42 0.41
Basic & Diluted
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

() Equity share cupital

(in ¥ in lakhs except No. of Shares)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Equity shures of TRs. 10 cach issucd, subscribed and fully paid up
Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
Changes in equity share capital during the ycar - -
Issue of cquity shares (refer note 11) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
Changes in cquity share capital during the year - -
Issue of equity shares (refer note 11) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
(b) Other equity (%)
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
. Securities Premium Deemed Capital Retained earnings Remeasurements of
Particulars Reserve Contribution the net defined benefit| 10tal other equity
Plans
Balance as at April 1, 2020 3.666.25 14.22 (220.60) (75.51) 3,384.36
Profit for the year - - 120.17 - 120.17
Other comprehensive income (OCI) (net of tax) - = - (l.41) (1.41)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 120.17 (1.41) 118.76
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3,666.25 14.22 (100.43) (76.92) 3.503.12
Profit for the ycar = - 2,171.37 - 2,171.37
Other comprehensive income {OCI) (net of tax) - - = (26.50) (26.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,171.37 (26.50) 2,144.87
Balance as at March 31,2022 3,666.25 14.22 2,070.94 (103.42) 5,647.99
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of cash flows

(X in Lukhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit after tax 2,17137 120.17
Adjustments :
Income Tax Expense 928.16 46.57
Provision for loss allowance 174.03 3.19)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,136.00 1,074.51
Interest income (12.32) (79.03)
Finance costs 228.97 312.35
Granl income (3.51 -
Loss on salc/disposal of Property, plant and cquipment 4928 5.27
Liabilities no longer required written back (49.37) 3
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 4,622.61 1,476.70
Changes in trade receivables (30.44) (137.04)
Changes in inventorics (98.34) 40.75
Changes in loans, other financial asscts and other asscts (69.55) (83.44)
Changes in trade payables and other financials liabilities 599.24 37832
Changes in provision 47.68 (38.19)
Cash generated from operations 5,071.20 1,637.10
[ncome taxes (paid)/ Refund Received (Net) (736.04) 174.79
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 4,335.16 1,011.89
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,561.31) (509.14)
Loan Given during the year to fellow subsidiary (300.00) -
Loan received back from feliow subisidiary 300.00 -
Investment in bank deposits (24.65) (13.98)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.48 3.69
Interest received 12.32 79.03
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (1,565.16) (440.40)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 164,70
Repayment of long-term borrowings (2,677.44) (925.39)
Paymen! of lcase liabilities (refer note 14) (220.09) (167.78)
Interest and other borrowing costs (171.16) (243.29)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (3,068.64) (1,171.76)
Net (decrense)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (296.64) 399.73
Cash and cash equivalents at Ihe beginning of the year (refer note 10)* 592,96 193.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) 294.32 592.96
Significant accounting policies 3
* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafis that are repayvable on demand and form an inlegral part of the v's cash management.
Reconeiliation of linbilitics from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022
Non Cagh Clinnges
Asat Fair Value/other Asat
Particulars April 1, 2021 Proceeds Repavment changes Forelgn exchange March 31, 2022
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 2,797.14 - (2,677.44) - - 119.70
Lease liabilities 736.19 - (220 04) 57.81 - 573.96
‘Total liabilities from financing activities 3,533.33 - (2,897.48) 57.81 - 693.66
R itiation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31,2021
Non Cash Changes
As at Fair Value/other As at
Particulars April 1, 2020 Procecds Repayment changes Foreign exchange March 31, 2021
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 3,557.83 165 (925.39) - - 2,797.14
Lease liabilitics 83491 - (167.78) 69.06 - 736.19
Total liabilities from financing activities 4392.74 164.70 (1,093.17) 69.06 - 3,533.33

The accompanying nctes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.

2.1

2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

Company overview

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited (‘the Company”) was incorporated on 08 May 1995 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting, managing and

maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all disciplines of medicine and without limitation
to run and administer healthcare schemes.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013
(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 20,
2022.

Details of the accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Going concern

The Company has positive net worth as at the balance sheet date. Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited, Holding
Company, which continues to support the Company through equity infusion and acting as a corporate
guarantor for long-term loans availed by the Company from the financial institutions and banks. Whilst the
current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets as of March 31, 2022, the financial statements
have been drawn up on a going concern basis in view of the support letter received from the Holding
Company confirming their continued financial support to the Company to enable it to continue its operations
and settle its obligations as and when they become due over the next twelve-month period.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional

currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis under the historical cost convention except

for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities 3 Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligations




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

2.5. Use of estimates and judgements

2.6.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

— Note 28 — leases and lease classification.
— Note 35 — financial instruments

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

— Note 29 — recognition of tax expense

— Note 33 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

— Note 26 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

- Note 6, 9, 10, 35 — recognition of impairment of financial assets and

— Note 4 —useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

~ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair
values is included in Note 36 — financial instruments.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.

Significant accounting polices

3.1. Financial instruments

a. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

b. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
— amortised cost; or
— FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed.

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows.

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features.

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

amortised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit
and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

¢. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks.and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

d. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.2. Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical equipments are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale, the net realisable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net realisable is
made on an item-by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value added tax wherever
applicable, applying the first in first out. method. )
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Bank
overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral part of an entity’s cash
management.

3.5. Revenue recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the
services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date to the
extent of services rendered.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer
and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

‘Unbilled revenue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet
date. *Unearned revenue’ comprises billings in the excess of earnings.

Revenue from nursing school
Revenue from nursing school is recognised when the related services are rendered, and the consideration is
received.

Other medical and health care services
Revenue from other medical and health care services are recognized as and when the services are rendered
in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Sl

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an
item of tangible fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lower of estimated useful life and lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Building 60 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Medical equipment 13years
Office equipment 5 years

Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
appropriately.

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based on
the internal technical assessment and these useful life are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use
before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years

Amortisation method

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.

3.8. Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense
as the related service is rendered by the employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed periodically by a qualitied
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is managed by third party administrator.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company recognizes gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the curtailment or settlement occurs.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the employee has
unconditional right to avail the leave, the benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company
records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.10. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in
exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after
April 1, 2019,

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. :

3
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.11. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

3.12. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to
the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative tax

According to Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid over
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding
assessment year for set-off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the
entity’s normal income tax during the specified period.

3.13. Impairment
a. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

&
>
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer.

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise.

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade
receivable does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amourit of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

3.15. Segment Reporting

Operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) who makes
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Segment results that are
reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis.

3.16 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.17 Standards Issued but Not Effective

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following
existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2022.

i. Ind AS 101 —First time adoption of Ind AS

ii. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

iii. Ind AS 109 — Financial Instrument

iv. Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 —Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

vi. Ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the company’s financial
statements.
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Meridian Medical Research & 1lospita) Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

6 Other financial assets (T in Lakhs)
Partleul; As at Asal
culars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties

Bank deposits (due to malure afier 12 months from the reporting date) 49.22 10.11
Security deposits 150,07 138.90
199.29 149.00
(b) Current
To parties other than related partles
Unbilled revenue 114.44 115.22
Security depositi 1633 17,16
130,77 132,38
T Other assets (T in Lakhy
As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(a) Non-current
To partles other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 19.83 2743
Cupilal advances 22553 10.54
Advanee fncomie tix and x deductod at dource, net 985,16 87239
1,230.52 91036
() Current
To parties other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 94.34 71.97
Advance to vendors 5257 44.23
Balance with government authorities ~ 1.94
Other Joans and advances 2629 26.58
173.20 144.72
B Inventories (Tin Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Rarticulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
{(Valued at lowor of cost and net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 33773 23583
Less: Provision for wrile-down to net realisable value {28.23) 24071
309.50 211.16
9 Trade receivables in Lakhs
Particulars Ll Asia
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Considered Good - unsecured 2,261.28 2,230,84
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (425.37) (251:35)
Total 1.835.91 1.5979.50
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as follows:
Trade reccivables (refer noie 30) - 0.89
Expected credit loss allowance - -
- 0.89

Net trade receivable from relaied

Trade recelvables apeing sehedule

Particulars Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments T
Mare than 3 vears

Not Due 0-6 Monthy 6 months-1 year 1-2 yrary 2.3 yeary

As at March 31, 2022

Undlsputed - Considered Good 1,757,80 14.51 179.80 206.55 94.62 8.00 2,261.28

Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - - -
1.757.80 14.51 179.80 206.55 94.61 H.00 226128

As at March 31, 2021

Undisputed - Considered Good 1,679.55 3398 161.31 216.43 41.22 98.35 2,230.84

Disputed - Considered Good = = i - - = -
1.67%.55 33.98 161.31 216.43 41.22 98.35 2.230.84

The Company uses a provision matrix lo determine the expecied credit loss on the portfolio of its irade receivables. The provision malrix is bascd on ils historically observed default rates over the expecled life of the trade reccivables and is

ndjusted for forward-looking estimates, At each reporting period, the historically observed default rates are updated and chenges in forward-looking esti are {. The expected credit loss all is based on the ageing of the doys the
receivables are due and he rotes as given in the provision matrix, The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Category Ageing
Within due date  Due date to 1 year More than |
year

As at March 31, 20122

ESI/CGHS/SCHEMES 3.24% 3451% 76.63%
Others 2.94% 34.80%% 74,98%
As at March 31, 2021

ESI/CGHS/SCHEMES 291% 19.68% 54.89%
Others 1.00% 12.18% 47.18%

The Company'’s exposure 1o credit risk and currency risks, and loss allowances are disclosed in note 35 i f




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes (0 the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

10 Cash and bank balsnces (Zin Lakhy)
Parti Asat Asat
articulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(8) Cash and cash equivalents

Cush on hand 2555 6.65

Belance with banks
-On current sceounts 26877 SR4.31
294.32 592.96

(b) Bank balances other than above

~On deposit wecounts (due to nature within 12 months of the reporting dute)* 5243 27.74
P

52.43

* The above deposits are restriciive as they pertain to hank guarantee

For the purpase of the statement of cash flaws, cash and cash equivalent comprise the followings: (2 in Lakhy)

Particulars ALET Asal
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on hand 2555 L.65
Balances with banks
-On current aceounts 265.77 554.31
=94.32 592.96
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash fiows 29432 592,96
11 _Equity share capital (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Astt aent
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Authorived
35,000,000 cquity shares (March 31, 2021 35,000,000 cquity shares) of 2 10 cach, with voling
rights 3,500.00 3,500.00
Issued, subscribed and pald up
2,92,78,820 equity shares (March 31, 2021: 2,92,78,820 of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up ,with voting 292788 2,927 88
rights.
2.927.88 292748
i) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number of yhares Amount Number of shares Amount
At the begining of (e year 2,92,78,820 2,927.88 2,92,78,820 292788
Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 2,92,75.820 2,928 2,92,78,820 292788

1)) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares referred (o as cquily sharcs having a par value of % 10 cach. Accordingly, all cquity shares rank cqually with regard lo dividend and share in the Company's residual assels, Each holder ol equity
shares is entiled Lo one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The dividend proposcd by the Board of Dircctors is subject io the approval of the sharcholders in the then ensuing Annual
General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled lo receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion Lo e number of equity
shares hield by shareholder.

111y Sharey held by holding campany

Particulars As at March 31, 2012 Asat March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Equity sharesof 2 10 cach fully paid up held by
- Naravana Hrudavnlava Limited 1,90,24.467 2.902 45 2.90.24 467 2.902.45
iv) Particulars of shurcliolders holding more than 5% equity shares:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares % holding
- Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 2,90,24,467 99.13% 290,24.467 99.13%

The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date Further, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cosh during the
period of five years immedialely preceding the balance sheel date.

() Shurcholding of promuters:

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter Name

Number of shares %% of total shares % Change during thy vear
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 290,24 467 99.1111% 000
Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Shakuntala Sheity * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Viren Prosad Shelty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Dr, Varun Shelty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%

! hd 100 0.0003% 0.00%

Dr. E:

* These shares are held by registered shareholders holding on behalf of beneficial sharcholder i.c, Nurayann Hrudayalayn Limited

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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Notes to the fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

12 Other equity (2 in Lukhy)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
Al the commencement of the year 3,666.25 3,666.25
Add: Movemom daring the year - -
Al the end of the year 3,666.25 3,666.25
Deemed Capital Contribution
Al the commencement of the year 14.22 14.22
Add: Additiens during the year - -
Al the end of the year 1422 1422
Retained eamings
Al the commencement of the year (100.43) (220.60)
Add: Net profit afler tax transferred from statement of profit and loss 2,171.37 120.17
At the end of the year 2,070.94 (100.43)
Other Comprehensive Income
Al the commencement of the year (76.92) (75.51)
Add: Addition during the year (26.50) (141}
At the end of the year [103.42) [76.92)
5,647.99 3.503.12
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issuc of shares, It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of amounts that can be distribuled by the company us divided fo its cquity sharchalders.
Other Comprehensive Income
Other Compre} Income rep actuarial gain or loss or re-measurement of defined benefits obligation
Deemed Capltal Contribution
Deemed capital contribution by Holding Company on account of employee stock options issued to employces
13 Borrowings (T in Lakhy)
. Asal As at
Fariiculany March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
(=) Non—current
(i) Sccured
Term loans
From barnks (refcr note 1) 119.70 2,797.14
Less: Current maturity of bong term debt (refer note 13(b1) {32.94) (635.24)
Total non-current borrowings #6.76 2,161.90
(b) Current
(1) Secured
Term loans
Current maturity af long term debt 3194 63524
Total current berrawings 3294 635.24

I Term laans from hanks :

Nature of Security

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturiry

i) Term loan from State Bank of Indin: * Nil (previous year: * 1546.79 lakhs). Ii is repayahle in Nil
querterly instalments from the reporting date (previous year: 15 quarterly instalments). Interest i
charged @ 7.15% p.a. (previous ycar: 7.15% p.a.)

ii) Term loan from State Bank of India: " Nil (previous year: * 469,26 lakhs) It is repaysble in Ni|
quurterly instolments from the reporting dale (previous year: 14 quarterly instalments). Interest is
charged @ 7.15% p.o. (previous vear 7.15% p.a)

‘Term loan from State Bank Of India, SME Branch, Howrah are sccured by cquitable mortgage of 3.0832 acre of leaschold land (Lease valid till
2036) in the name of company and 5 storey building comprising of old hospital at JL No-38 Mouza Podra, PS Sankrail ranihati, Howrah (on

pari-passu basis) Co operalive Society Lid, Tille deed no 396 ol Old hospital p d by the & by hypoth of all bl
assets including medical fi & other 11 fixed assets of the Company including s first charge on inventorics and
trade of the pany, and corporale g of Narayana Hrudayaloya Limited.

iii) Term loan from Stale Bunk of India: * Nil (previous year: * 616.39 lokhs). It is repayuble in
il quarterly instal from the reporting dale (p year: 19 quarterly instalments). Interest]

is charged @ 7.18% poo (previous year: 7.15% p.a)

iv) Term loan from Axis Bank Lid: * 119.70 lakhs (previous year : * 164.70 lakhs). Payable in 20
quarterly instalments storting from 16 May 2022). Interest is charged at 7.00% pa, (previous year!
7.00%pa)

Exclusive sccurily on Robotic equipment purchascd out of Term loan / capex LC, Additional movable fixed assets of the borrower such that
taril security cover is |.25x and corporale guarantee of Narayann Hrudayalaya Limited,

Note: Statements of current assets including stock statement filed by the Company with its bankers are in agreement with books of accounts

Y

Lease liabilitles (€ in Lakhs)
: Asat Asat
Particulsrs March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(n) Non-current
Lease liability Opening 736.19 83491
Additions during the period - -
Finance cost accrued during the period 57.81 69.06
Lease payment (220.04) (167.78)
Lease liability Closing 573.96 736.19
Less: Current lease liabilily (176.91). (162.23)
397.05 573.96
{b) Current
Current lease lability 176,91 162,23
176.91 16233
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Notes to the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
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16

Provisions (refer note 33)

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(2) Non—current
Provision for employee benelits

Grajuity 25,80 25.82
[ 1592
(b) Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absenices 123.60 10930
123.60 109.30
Trade payables (2 in Lakhs)
g Agat As at
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl emerprises (refer note 34) 20050 125851
Toral outstinding dues of creditors other than micro enterprives and small enterprises 28B).54 247168
3,082.74 2,7197.1%
To related parties
Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enierprises (tefer note 30) 4.68 11.14
Total outstanding dues of reditors uther than miceo enterprises and small enterprives frefer nate 30) 419 -
8.87 11.14
Trade payables agelng schedule X in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Particulars Total
Not Due * 0-1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Ag at March 31, 2022
a) Undisputed - MSME 140.82 64.17 0.12 0.47 - 205.58
b) Undisputed - Others 1,502.46 1,312.44 51.26 14.23 5.64 2,886.03
<) Disputed dues - MSME - % = = N -
d) Pisputed dues - Others - - d 2 - -
Total 1,643.28 1376.62 5138 14.70 5.64 3,091.61
As at March 31, 2021
o) Undisputed - MSME 123.75 12.31 0.59 - - 136.65
b) Undisputed - Others 844.99 1,736.50 71.64 2.08 16.47 2,671.68
¢) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
¢ Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 968.74 1,748.81 72.23 1.08 1647 2,808.33
* Not Due includes provision for expensee
Other financial labilities (T in Lakhy)
Particulars Asad At
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Current
To parties other than related parties
Crediors for capilal goods 68.17 480.76
Others 14.62 13.37
§2.79 494.13
Other fabilitles (¥ in Lakhs)
N Asat Asat
Particulurs March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Non Current
To parties other than related parties

Deferred grant -others * 533 =
53 -
Current
To parties other than related parties
Unearned reverie 67.53 192,08
Contract labilitics SE2.6T 220,40
Halances duc o statutory’ government authorities 121.01 10172
Interest Accrued but not Due on Long Term Baorrowiing 0.87 098
772,08 515.5%

* During the financinl year 202122, the company had reccived capital grants from various corparates amaunting to T K45 lakhs for purchise of Medical equipments as agreed. The Cempany has recognized this grant as deforred inconie a1 fair
value which is being amortized over the usefiel life of the fined nsscts in proportionin which related depreciation is recognized.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

19 Revenue from operations (R in Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Barticulans March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income from medical and healthcare services 22,937.60 16,450.33
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 483.24 530.97

Other operating revenue:

Revenue from Nursing School 36.39 137.91
23,457.23 17,119.21

Refer notes below

(i) Category of Customer

Cash* 11,614.91 8,128.99
Credit 11,842.32 8,990.22
Total 23,457.23 17,119.21

* Includes receipts through digital/electronic mode

(ii) Nature of treatment

In-patient 18,706.10 12,754 .44
Out-patient 4,231.50 3,695.89
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 483.24 530.97
Others 36.39 137.91

23.457.23 17,119.21

(iii) The revenue from rendering Healthcare services and Pharmaceutical products satisfies ‘at a point in time’ recognition criteria as prescribed

by Ind AS 115
(iv) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contractual Linbilities
Contractual Liabilities 582.67 220.80

(v) Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The Company has applied the practical expedient with respect to non disclosure of information in respect of remaining performance
obligations considering the fact that the company’s performance obligations, i.e. the treatment in case of healthcare segment has an original
expected duration of one year or less.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
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23

Other income (X in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 4.01 5.10
- Income tax Refund 831 73.93
Grant income 3.51 -
Liabilities no longer required written back 49.37 -
Miscellaneous income 44.02 40.57
109.22 119.60
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments R in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 211.16 251.91
Inventory at the end of the year 309.50 211,16
(98.34) 40.75
Employee benefits expenses (¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Barticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,772.60 2,398.32
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer notc 33) 235.71 21235
Staff welfare expenses 24.67 23.71
3,032.98 2,634.38
Other expenses (X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Hospital operating expenses
Power and fuel 502.36 465.19
Hospital general expenses 188.12 183.74
House keeping expenses 553.15 52437
Patient welfare expenses 255.82 232.77
Rent 169.23 132.07
Medical gas charges 97.68 108.99
Biomedical wastage expenses 18.38 17.44
Repairs and maintenance
- Hospital equipments 659.48 436.43
- Buildings 139.31 126.11
- Others 296.53 286.86
2,880.06 2,513.97
Administrative expenses
Traveling and conveyance 41.31 43.04
Security charges 140,96 124.67
Printing and stationery 51.08 37.18
Rent 80.07 95.35
Advertisement and publicity 382.58 296.36
Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 34.65 32.94
Busincss promotion 50.93 56.64
Telephone and communication 43.99 38.24
Bank charges 42.24 27.80
Insurance 87.38 62.23
Corporate social responsibility (refer note (ii) below) 22.79 26.12
Rates and taxes 33.32 27.39
Books and periodicals 16.56 10.09
Provision for loss allowances 174.03 (3.19)
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, plant and equipment 49.28 5.27
Foreign exchange loss, (net) 0.26 0.47
Miscellaneous expenses 4.01 3.79
1,255.44 884.44
4,135.50 3,398.41
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Payment to auditors* (Zin Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As an auditor

Audit fee 9.00 9.00

In other capacity :
Other services (certification fees) 0.50 0.50
0.14 0.06

Reimbursement of expenses

*excluding goods and service tax

Corporate social responsibility

Consequent to the requircments of Section 135 of the Companics Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same
is in line with activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companics Act, 2013,

The Company's CSR activities primarily focuses on programs that aims to make a positive difference in the lives of the people by engaging in
activities that eliminates or alleviates pain and suffering to the under privileged sections of the society by Promoting healthcare facilities for
the upliftiment of people at large and creating a positive impact by addressing issues of accessibility and affordability.Promoting educational
facilities to help and assist in unfolding the creative potentials and talents of the children and amateurs.

® in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 22.79 23.34
b) Amount of expenditure incurred on purpose other than construction/ acquisition of 2l 22
any asset
c) Excess spend of prior years set off during the year - -
d) Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year [(d)=(a)-(b)<c)] - (2.78)
¢) Total of previous years shortfall - -
f) Reason for shortfall NA NA
Finance costs (X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
L March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- term loans from banks 170.77 242.19
- bank overdraft 0.39 1.10
Interest expense on lease liabilities 57.81 69.06
228.97 312.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense (X in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 994.06 932.57
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets (refer Note 5) 141.94 141.94
1,136.00 1.074.51
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any contingent liability as on March 31, 2022 (previous year - Nil).

(ii) Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for amounts to Z 3016.02 lakhs as on March
31, 2022 (previous year: X 83.51 lakhs).

27 Segment information

Operating Segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach" as defined in
Ind AS 108, operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore
‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in
the financial statements,

Geographical information

Geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue and non-current assets by the Company's country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In
presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of the customers and segment assets which have been
based on the geographical location of the assets. Since, the Company has only one geographical location, i.e. India, with respect to location of assets and
location of customers, further details about geographical information is not applicable.

One Customers - Swasthyasathi 21.55% accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2022 and Two Customers - WBHS (13.64%) &
Swasthyasathi (10.81%) accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2021,

28 Leases
The Company has taken various medical equipment, hospital premises, office and residential premises under operating leases. The leases typically run for a
term ranging from one to thirty three years, with an option to renew the lease after the term completion. The escalation clause in these arrangement ranges
from 0% 10 5%.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of rental payments (X in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than 1 year 220.04 220.04
1 -2 years 204.04 220.04
2-5 years 84.09 260,10
More than 5 years 294.32 32235

(i) The following is the break-up of current and non—current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022

(X in Lakhs)
Parti As at As at
articulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current lease liabilities 176.91 162.23
Non-current lease liabilitics 397.05 573.96
573.96 736.19
(i) The following is the movement in the lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lease liability Opening 736.19 834.91
Additions during the period % -
Finance cost accrued during the period 57.81 69.06
Lease payment (220.04) (167.78)
573.96 736.19

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was 3249.30 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 (3227.42 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021).

&
)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

29 Income tax

(1) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

(2 in Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current income tax 613.05 27.25
MAT credit entitlement (48.76) (27.25)
Deferred tax liability / (asset)

Origination and reversal of temy v ifi e 361.87 4657
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 363.87 46.57
Tax expense for the year 928.16 46.57
{b) Amouni recognised in other comprehengive income (X in Lakhs)

For the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax  Tax (expense) benefit Net of tax
benefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plins (36.72) 10.22 (26.50) (1.95) 0.54 (140
(36.72) 10,22 (26.50) (1.95) 0.54 (1.41
() Reconcilintion of effective tax rate (% in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 3,099.53 166.74
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Current year 29.12% and Previous Year 27.82%) 902.58 46.39
Tax effect of:
Changes in lax rales 12.05 -
Expenses nol deductible for lax purpose 19.96 0.18
Others (6.43) -
928.16 46.57
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: T in Lakhs)
Balance as at Adjustment to Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance as at
April 1, 2021 retained earnings Profit or loss during 2021-22 March 31, 2022
during 2021-22
(charge)/credit
Deferred (ax asset
Provision for doubtful receivables 69.92 - 53.95 - 123.87
Provision for gratuily 7.22 - 17.76 10.22 35.20
Provision for compensated absences 3041 - 5.58 - 35.99
Provision for slow moving and non moving inventory 6.86 - 1.36 - 8.22
On brough! forward loss 386.69 - (386.69) - -
Others §6.76 - (0.26) - 86.50
Total deferred tax asset 587.86 - (308.30) 10.22 289,78
Deferred tax liability
Excess of deprecialion on fixed assct under Income Tax Acl, 1961 over (845.69) - (55.57) - (901.26)
depreciation under Companies Act,
Total deferred tax liability (845.69) - (55.5T) - (901.26)
Minimum alternative tax asset 439.24 48.76 - 488.00
Deferred tax nsset/{Liability] (net) 181.41 - (315.11) 10.22 (123.48)
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30 Related party disclosures
(a) Details of related pariles

MNatare of relationship Name of related parties
isc having coatrol over the Company |Narayana H.mdlyullE Limited

Raketh Verma - Chiel Executive Officer
Asmit Pandya - Chief Financial Officer (till December 11, 2021)
Key Managemant Persanne]l (KMP) Pruicrjit Mandal - Chief Financial Officer (w.e . March 29, 2022)
Shwyta Priy - Company Secretary (w.e.f. Fehruary 4, 2022)
Lty

[ir. Emmaniel Rupest - Menaping Direetor gnd Gnaup CEO

Key Management Parsannel (KMP) of the Holding Viren Prasad Shetty. Whale Time [Hrector uad Group CO0

Company Kesavan Venugopalen. Chief Financial Officer (5l Sovember 12, 20217
Sandhyy Jsyuraman - Chiel Faanclal (MHlcer (w.e £ Becember 1, 201§

Srdbur §- Campany Seceetsry

Norsyans lnetingte for Advance! Reszerch Privace Limited (NJARPL)
Narzyana Hrudaynlnya Surgical Hospital Private Limited (NFISHPL)
Sarayama Hospitals Privalc Limited (NHPL)

Narayana Health Institutions Private Limited (NHIPL)

Marayama Cayman Holdings Lid (NCHL) (till March 31, 2021)
Marzyana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospilals Private Limited (NVDSHPL)
Maniysni Holdings Private Limiled (NHDPL)

Healils City Cayman Islands (HCCI)

Marmyana |lealth North Americs LLC

NH Heajth Bangladesh Private Linited

Assinizte of Halding Company Trimeds Inifjs Frivate Limited

ity inder controlf joint contral of KMPVEME uf Namayinag Hrudiyalays Foaumdathen

Fellose subiadizrics

lag coenpadty sl their relatives Arusiyllis Heallheare Private Limited
(b) Transactlons with related party during year ended March 31, 2022 {Tin Lakhs)
Transactions Enterprise having contro] over the Fellaw subaldiaries Ausoclate of enterprise | Entity under coatrol/ Joint Key Mansgement Total
Company having controel control of KMP/KMP of Personnel (KMP)
Holdlng company and
thelr relatives
Purchave of medical ramuimables, drugs and surgiesl Idraments & Seovices
Narayana Hredavaloya Limjied i) £-) (- (-}
N 5 . - B .02 o]
Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited 1 ) (107.15) o
- - e <
Total
al ) (-1 (07,185 (]
Sale of medical conswmables, drugs and wrgheal Inaramenis & Servioes
39 2] ] p B B
Narsyana Hrudayalaya Limited (NHL) {9.68] 1-H (&) (& (i
Narayana Vaithna Devi Specialty Hospitsl Frivote H - < . - -
Elenited (NVIHPLY ()] (030} 18] [ 1 030
Narayana Hnidayniaya Surgical Hospitsf Private Limncd - 5 K E o =
INHISHIL () (0.59) (8] e ¢ (0.59)|
Total 18 - < ~ -1 335
f'!,i!u (0.85}] - (-] 11 (s

Relubarsemant af Expenses

[ 152 . I f 5.51
Narwyam Hradsylays Lamged (81713 11.98)| 1) [ {1 (B (LR

Purrhase of aniels

FED . 1 ] = ] 475
Margwaiu Hnadiyvalaya Limited (NHL) (435 1= 1=l (& -} (438
-l aiacty
Narayana lrudayslaya Limied (SHLY | :Ls}1| |-)| l-i[ t->| |-)l 12 553
Hent
N o - -] 142 61 142 61
Nanyana Hrudayalaya Foundation (NHF) I (_)l !-\‘ ) 140 74) {-;I {140.74)

Loan given
araans Nlriilayalaye Surgieal Horpital Privae Limitsg I :numJ ’I 1 [ 300.09]
NHSHPL) 1) 2 £ 1= i) ]

Narayasa Hrdayalaya Sargical Houital Private Liinfed -| 300,00 .[ -l -| 300,00
(NHSTIPLY =] i1 [ (-] 1) [
Interesl luceme

Mneyana Tinadayaliya Surgral Mospital Prvate Limited ] W1a| ] p ] 3
[NHSHPL) (8] {4 (=5 (0 -] (=)
Discount entitlement 15.06 - - - 15.06
‘Norayana Hrudayaloya Limited ) ) ) L ) A




Meridian Medical Research & Hospllal Limlted

Notes 10 the financlal statements for the year ended Muarch 31, 2022 (continued)

[Phscuum entitiement
Nariyana Hrudayalaya Foundation (NHF) i : N 800, I 40,00
i) 1=} - 166,001 [ 160,001
Sherf-terim emplayed benglin® T
Realkesh Vi . 4 1 | 3 4341
pavems - & L) ) 3871 iR
) - - - g 12.98] 12.9%
Al
mit Pandys (4 ()] ) () (8.23)) (823
Divi . - - - - - .
g 2 ) ) ) @5s2) @s2
Shweu Priy ' R - B (53] 43
6] 0] () 1) 0) J:I‘
. o .| ! o 1.97] 1.97]
Prasenjit Mandal
2 I8 i-) () ) ) 8
. o -] | - 139 7.39]
Hrishikesh V Murthy 4 o) © & 9.11) e 1)
| - R - 70.08, 70.08|
Total
S A £) £} £) (6057 000 ¢60.sT)
* The remurceation 1o KMP does nol include the provisions made fur gratuity and ceeperiasied absencer, us they wre obtafmed un an sctiaris! hasis for the Company as a whole.
Figures in brecket are for the previous year
c) The balances recelvable from and payable to related parties
(T Laklu)
Balsnces Enterprise having contral over the Fellow mubsldlaries Asgoclate of enlerprise | Entity under control/ Joint Key Msnagement Total
Company havlog control control of KMP/KMP of Personnel (KMP)
Holding company and
Trade payahles
I ——— = = 468 = 468
Amaryllis Heallhcare Private Limited . o) 1y (11 14 1) {1114
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (NHL) ik : . - . 4Ly
B ) () [2)
4.19] -i B o
Total
()] () £ £
Trade receivables
Narayana Vaishno Devi Spoeiairy |Tariial Friviee B 7 > z N =
Limited (NVDSHPL) (] 0.30) (5] 1) 1) (030,
s Hinsbsyalays Susgical Hovpital Private Limbal E - - ., - -
Iy (0] ﬂ‘i 5] {2 ) (0.59)
Total N - 7 h ] b
[€ (089) £ ) £) [0.89))
[Corparate guaranter tken
i 8,207.00 - - - - 8,20700
Narayanz Hrudayelays Limited y M
— s (8207001 &) | (=) (5] i+l 8.207.00)
Notes:

(a) No amounts in respect of related parties have been writien of/ back or provided for during the year.
(b) Reluted party relationships have been identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.
(c) The terms and eandilions of the transactions with related parties were no mare favourable than those available, or thase which might reasonably be expecied 1o be
available, in respect of similar wansactions with other than related entifics an sn arm's length basis

(d) Figures in brackets are for the previous year .
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

31 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earning per share

(T in lakhs) except for share data

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
culars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit after tax 2,171.37 120.17
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic & diluted)
As at As at
Shares March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total no. of shares outstanding 2,92,78,820 2,92,78,820
Effect of shares issued during the year - ~
Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 2,92,78,820 2,92,78,820
Basic and diluted Earning per share (%) 742 041

32 Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management

monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.

For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.

The capital structure is as follows:

(® in Lakhs)

Particulars el o
March 31, 2022 Maurch 31, 2021

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 8,575.87 4,431.00
As a percentage of total capital 99% 70%
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 119.70 2.797.14
Total borrowings 119.70 2,797.14
As a percentage of total capital 1% 30%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 8,695.57 9,228.14




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

33 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance to a defined contributio
Company is required to contribute a specified pereentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the ben

The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Emy

ending March 31, 2021 :  185.44 lakhs)

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a post-cmployment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The

n retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the

ployee State Insurance for the year ending March 31, 2022 aggregated to  208.38 lakhs (previous year

gratuity plan entitles an employec, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to

receive one-half month's salary for cach year of compleled service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India.. The Company's
obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income forming part of the statement profit and loss.

Bascd on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the d in the Company’s fi ial as at
balance sheet date;
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 45 ] aslat
Murch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit liability 309.70 256.74
Plan asscts 223.90 230.82
Net defined benefit liability B5.80 25.92
Liability for Compensated absences 123.60 109.30
Total employee bencfit liability 209.40 135.22
Non-current B5.80 25.92
Current 123.60 109.30

Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liability

The following table presents a reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components

i) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligations (T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 256.74 236.44
Current service cost 28.36 26.75
Interest cost 9.15 1027
Benefit payments from plan assets (22.64) =
Benelit payments directly by employer - (17.58)
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in demographic assumptions 244 {0.39)
-changes in fi ial plions (6.34) 22.84
-experience ndjustements 41.99 (21.59)
Defined benefit obligations at the end of the vear 309.70 256.74
i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets (T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
LT March 31, 2022 Mareh 31,2021
Plan assets at beginning of the year 230.82 188.99
Benefit refund (o be received by the company (4.44)
Contributions paid into the plan 4.17 3281
Expecled return on plan assets 10.18 10.11
Benefits paid (18.20) -
Acturial gain on plan asscts 1.37 (1.09)
Plan assets at the end of the year 223.90 130.82
Net defined benefit liability §5.80 2592
C. i Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended
Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 2836 26.75
Interest cost 9.15 10.27
Interest income {10.18) {10.11)
1733 2691
ii) Remeasurements r ised in other pherensive income (T in Lakhs)
Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation 38.09 0.86
Acturiol gain on plan assets (1.37) 1.09
36.72 1.95

&
>
CHARTERED |




Meridian Mecdical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

D. Plan Assets

Plan assets comprises of the following: _(Xin Lakhs)
- For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Government bonds 223.90 230.82

223.90 230.82

The nature of asscls allocation of plan assets is in government bond of high credit rating.

Defined Benefit obligations

i) Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

— As at As at
Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Attrition rate Up to Level 6 =38%, Up to Level 6 =44%, Level

Level 7 and above=46% 7 and above=22%
Discount rate 541% 441%
Expecled rate of return on plan assets 6.70% 6.70%
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) Ulimate  IALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Future salary increases First year 7.90% First year 7.90%
Thereafter 6% Thereafier 6%
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published stalistics and mortality tables.
The expecled contributions to the fund during the year ending 31 March 2023, will be approximately ¥35.35 lakhs
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
(X in Lakhs)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ist following ycar 120.61 98.44
2nd following year 78.52 62.41
3rd following year 5227 41.29
4th following year 36.17 26.96
5th following year 21.39 23.46
Year 6 to 10 35.15 25.90
More than 10 vears 4.00 5.11
ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounis shown below.
Partlculars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2.74) 277 (2.94) 3.02
Future solary increases (0.5% movement) 272 2.72) 3.00 (2.94)
Attrition rate (0.5% movement) (0.36) 0.34 0.22) 021
Mortality rate (16)% movement) (0.01) (0.01) 0,00 (0.01)
Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash Nows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
34 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their corresp with its cusl s the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocaled after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable
1o such cnlerprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“The MSMED. Act’) is nol expected to
be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplicr.

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Asiat Asjat

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
The amounts remuining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
-Principal 202,88 136.49
~Imierest 2.70 0.16
The nmount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act - =
The amaunt of payments made to micro and small supplices beyond the appointed day during the accounling year; - =
The omount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act; = =
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 2.70 0.16

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as
nbove are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act . .

L rl:, b_\ >



Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Noles ta the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (confinued)

A% Fimaneisl inarruments: Fair valur wnd rik managemenn

A. Accounting classification and falr velues (o Lakhs)
Av st Mareh 11, 2022 FVTIL Avpmrtlyed i Votal
Finaneiel avven
Trade reccivables - 1,835.91 183591
Cash and cush equivalents . 29432 29432
Hank balarses oiber than abawr . 5243 24
Cithier financial guen . 30 s S30 04
- pETIN ] 151
Fimisniaf fakilities
Dorraw ings - 19.70 11970
Lease Jiabilities - 5§71.96 571.96
Trade payables . 3,001 61 2,091 61
Olier naneiel |Labilities - Ly B
- RN J.B48.04
FVTPL Amarthed coit Tolal
Trade receivables E 1,979.50 1,979.50
Cash and rash equivalents - 59296 59296
Hank balances arher tha sbime - 2778 2778
Dither finaneial ouists . 29 X129
= 2.881.43 2A81.63
Finameiad liwbilities
Borrowings - 2.797.14 2.797.14
Lease linbilities 73619 619
Trade payables . 2,808 2,8083)
Oher feencial lialilities . 40418 48413
- AT 6T

Mrssrement ol falr valies
The carrying value of all financial assets approximates the fair value; fair value of mutual funds are based on quoted price

B Fimancial ritk mamagement
The Company’s activilics expase it to & variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

(1) Ritk management framenork
The Companys risk management is carried vl by a central treasury depariment under policies approved by the Buard of Directurs The Board superviscs uverall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas, such as
forcign exchange risk. eredit risk and use of financial insruments

(1) Credi( rivk
Credit risk is the risk thal the counterparty will not meel its obligation under a financial insirument or customer contract, leading 1o financial less. The credit risk ariscs principally from ils operaling nctivilies (primarily imde
reccivables) and from it investing activilies, includiny depoaits with banks and financial inslitutions and olher financial instruments.

Credit risk 1» comrolled by umalying credit limiis und erednworthiness of customers on o continuous basis 1o whom credil has been granicd aficr obiaining necessary approvals for credit. The colleclion fiom the wade reccivables are
tapiritured wii 3 somtiitisens bath by the pecivables 1eam

The Contpany establishes an allowance for impairment thal represents its estimate of ¢xpected Jassen in respect of trade and other receivables based on the pasi and the recent collection irend. The maximum expasure fo credit risk as
ot reporting daie ix primarily (o trade receivabler nel of proviion for doubilul receisables amounling to 2 183591 Iakhs (31 March 2021: € |979,50 lakhsy. The movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade and cther
receivables during the year was us follows:

(¥ i Lakhs)
Allswaiee fur eredit less At al Asul
31 March 3022 31 March 202
Dipeming balanes 251.34 25348
et foas freverved) /. i 17408 3.1
Cjeilag halinss 4157 FLTET]
One Customers - Swasthyasathi 21 5% accounted for mare than 10% of Ihe revenue as of March 31,2022 and Two Customers - WBHS (13 64%) & Swasihyanathi (10.81%) accounted for more: than 10% of the revenue as of March

31,2021,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalenin is limited as the Company generally (ransacts wilh banks and financial institutinns with high credil ratings assigned by international and domestic credil rating agencics.

(L) Liquldiry riek

Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Company wil) encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are senled by delivering cash or another financial ssset, The Campany’s approach to managing
hiquidity is 10 ensure, as far ar passible, that il will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet ils liabilitien wiven they are due, under both normal and sireased conditions, withoul incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient 1o meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidiry risk is pereeived. In addition, the Company mainiains line of credils as stted in Note 14,

The tabde bubew providis detsify reparding t undiseounsed contractud insturitios of sigabiicin| Gndncal lkshilithen 20 01 3] March 2023: it In Lukiay
Farticilars Lews than | year 1-2yrary 3-8 yrare mare than § years Total
Borrowings EaL L 3129 L1 8 - 1970
Leiae lalrithibes 176 91 176 92 2970 19043 57396
Trade payables 3.m161 - - - 3.09161
(iher financial fishilities nm - - - L]
Tutal 138415 0986 RLS1 190.4% R L)
Thee tahile balow peovldes detidly eeganding fhur sirdbscomibed et acrual maturitics of vignifizant financzal Biablities = of 31 March 2021 1% I Lakha)
Particider Lews thae | yrar 1-2veara 15 yrary mary than § yesrs Tetal
Harpmwiegs 63524 697.94 [RE1E1Y 2 i 279714
et Yiahrtithen 16223 176.90 195 87 201 19 T16.19
Traibe payahles 2,808.33 5 - E 2,808 33
Daber financial habuizes 4513 - - 45413

Tatal 419943 T84 163513 12884 683570




Meridinn Medical Revearch & Hospital Limited

Notes 1o the finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

(v} Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fsir valuc of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as forcign exchange rates and interest rtcs

Cash fiow and falr value interest rate riak

The Company’s main interest rale risk azises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which cxpose the Company 1o cush flow interest rale risk

() Interest rate rigk expasure

‘The expasure of the Company's borrawing 1o interest rate changes at the end of Ihe reparting period with respect to long term borrowings with variable inlercst rates fram banks are as follows:

(¥ 1n Lakin)
Avat Anal
Fatichiy 31 Murch T2 31 Murch 2831
Variahlc £aiz lomy jerm Gamowings imcluding curren manetes 11971 ESTHATY
Total borremings 119.78 1904
(b} Semaltivity ¥l Lakl)
Impect op prefit ar Jos Tempact on other
Fartieatary eumpaients of equlty
Avm Asmt An st As sl
31 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2031 AT Mareh J122 31 March 7021
Bermitivity
1% inereuse i ase tnie (120) (27.97) (1.20) 27.97)
1% discresae | base rate 120 2797 120 2797
The Iinierest Lk semfibvity i hasel on the chming halance of seourvd ferm loand Brien basks.
3§ Finuneial Rutipy
Ratls Aethoial: For lhie year ended  For the yrar ended
i March 31. 2023 Mavih 3t qgny___ Verinice
a) Curreni Ratio Clrretsl aisets vver purrend iohiliie 065 4% S0
b) Debi-Equity Ratio ' Debi over toul shareholders’ equity 00l 043 96.79%
©) Debt Service Covera Ravio * Eaming available for debt service over debi serviee 10.28 049 2014.45%
d) Relum on Equily Ralio %’ PAT orer lotal average equily 28.94% 349% 72030%
©) Trade Recervable urnover Ratio * Credit Revenue fram operations over averge trade receivables 621 an 31.M4%
0 Trade pavables tumover ratio Toial purchases over average irade pavables 217 1.96 10.95%
W N sapital itemver bl * Revenue fram opcrations ever working canital -1581 -10.46 SL%
h) Net profit rania * Nel profit gver revenue from upcralions 9.26% 0.70% 1218,70%
i) Return on canital eminloved * IR sver eapital errimievesd 1774% 5.19% 626, 98%
242) 219 4.99%

i) Inventory wmover ralio

Cuwl uf goods sold over average inventory

Notes

EBIT - Eamings before interest and taxes

PBIT - Profit before interest and taxcs including other income

EBITDA - Eamings before inferest, Laxcs, depreciation and amartisation
PAT - Profit afier laxes

Debt includes current and noa-current lease liabilities

Capital employed refers 1o olal sharcholders' equily and debi,

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%:
! Improvement in Debt cquiy ratio and Debi aervice coverage ratio is due 1o repayment of Term loans

? Improvement in Return on equity is due 1o improved operational profits

* Improvement in Trade receivables lumover ratio is due 10 efficient collections

4 Net capital tumover ratio, Net profit ratio, Relurn on capital employcd percentage has improved due 1o operational eMiciencics

37 Other Ststutory Information
(i) There are no balance oultanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act 1956

(i) The Cumpany do not have any Capital-work-in progress or intangible asscts under development whuse completion is overduc or has exceeded ils cost cumpared tv its original plan

(iiii} The Company has not advanced or loancd or inveated funds lo any other personis) or entityties) including fareign entities (i diarics) with the unds ling that i diary shall:
(n) Directly far indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar an behall of the company (Ullimate beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guaraniee, security or the like to or on behallof the Ultimate beneficiarics

(iv) The Company have nol received any fund from any persan(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the undersianding (whether recorded in writing of otherwisc) that
(a) Dircctly for indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities idemified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ullimaie beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guaranice. security or the like 10 or on behalf ol the Ullimate beneficiaries

ded incomie that were Jered or disclased as income in the 1ax asscssments wider the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year

(v) The Company doesnt have any relating ta

(vi) I'he Company do not have any charges o xalisfaction which ie y1 10 be registered with ROC beyond (he sutulory periad

I8 Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacied, which would impact the contributions hy the Cempany towards Provident Fund and Gratuity, The cffective date from which the changes are spplicable is yet ta be
notificd The Ministry of Lahour and Employment (the Ministry) has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020, The Company will complete its evaluation nnd will give jale impact in its standslone financia)
resulls in the peviod in which the Code becomes efectise and the related rules are published

39 The Company has cunsidered the possible impact of known cvenls arising froen CONIR 19 pundemie snd continses o acy|vely mansge i Tnisea, bt g 1k g sarivey firitiathees b optlatise sunts gl meet it fmancial
commilments. The Company as of the reporting dale does not expect any long tezm adverse impat of COVIDNIY st fua alsifity T recver thie camyireg valae of fu current sssets amd rent niacts inclmding trade receivables,
property, plant and equipment and meeting its financial obligatians
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